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MADKIN  CEMETERY,  37 - 2 

 
Summary   Report 

 

 

 
 

 
This cemetery is in the south half of Section 22, Township 4 South, Range 1 

West.  It is reached by turning onto a dirt road from Hansen Road in the 

northeastern portion of the arsenal.  The dirt road is on the east side of 

Hansen Road, immediately after crossing the small creek to the north of the 

intersection of Hansen Road with the eastern end of Corporal Road.  After 

turning onto the dirt road, there will be a fork to the left about 35 yards east 

of Hansen Road.  The left fork to the north will end at the cemetery, a 

distance of about 0.2 mile. 
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The cemetery is small, encompassing enough area to hold perhaps 80 close-

spaced graves, but there is evidence of only a couple of definite grave 

depressions.  There is a recently-installed marker near the gate to denote the 

cemetery name.  No obvious field stones to mark graves were located.  The 

chain link fence around the cemetery was found to be in good condition as 

of December 16, 2002.  The name “Madkin” is considered to be a variant 

spelling (from phonetics or possibly from a deliberate separate spelling of 

the names taken by freed slaves after the Civil War to distinguish them from 

the spelling of the surname of the white former slave owners) of the more 

established name “Matkin”.  (See the Matkin Cemetery 37-3 report for a 

history of the white family by that name, who may well have been the 

owners of slaves buried in the nearby Madkin Cemetery.) 

 

Overviews of the Madkin Cemetery are provided below: 
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(View from the northwest toward the southeast corner of the cemetery area.) 

 

 

The land ownership records for the 1800s of the SW/4 of Section 22, 

Township 4 South, and Range 1 West are inserted below: 
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The land records reveal that the southwest quarter of S22 was originally 

owned by John Baker, from 1810.  In 1829 William Baker (probably a son 

of John, who had most likely died) “and others” (other heirs) sold the land to 

Jones Wood.  There is another apparent gap in ownership records (likely in 

estate probate records) per the INDEX above, because also in 1829 Abraham 

Beadle (and others) sold land in the SW/4 to Miles Watkins and others.  

However, it is commonly found that the name “Watkins” was often an 

incorrect interpretation of old handwriting of the name “Matkins”, so this 

was likely Miles Matkins.  Again with a gap in the INDEX ownership trail, 

there is a William Baker listed as selling land of the SW/4 to William (and 

Margaret A.) Matkins in 1846.  In 1854, the Matkins sold the land to George 

W. Davis.   Mr. Davis sold the land in 1856 to Richard Holding, who died in 

1863, during the Civil War, per his grave monument in the Madison City 

Cemetery. 
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The 1860 census showed Richard and his family living in Morgan County, at 

Valhermosa Springs, even though the owned extensive lands and slaves in 

Madison County. 
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In 1870 Richard’s son William Holding (who would have been age 29 in 

1870) in turn sold the land to William M. McCloskey, after the conclusion of 

the Civil War, when the slaves were all freed.  Probably a lot of the land 

owned by old plantation owners had to be sold after the Civil War, when 

there were no workers available unless they received wages or became 

sharecroppers.  When land couldn’t be farmed to be made productive or 

revenue producing, then it had to be sold before back taxes caused it to be 

seized and auctioned. 

 

The conclusion of these land transactions is that the Matkin family owned 

the land where the “Madkin” Cemetery is located for about 8 years, from 

1846 to 1854.  Of course, if the Miles Watkins was really Miles Matkins, 

then the family may have owned the land from 1829 to 1854.  During the 

years of the practice of enforced slavery, John Baker owned the land for 19 

years, while George Davis owned it for 14 years, of which 9 years were 

during the time of slavery.  Since the Matkin ownership is known to have 

lasted about 8 years (with the possibility of being 8 plus another 17, if there 

was a marriage or other probate basis between the Wood, Beadle, Watkins, 

and/or Baker men to the Matkin women), then it appears that the Matkin 

name should not be the basis for the name of this cemetery.  That concept, of 

course, assumes that it is indeed a slave cemetery.  If so, it may well have 

slaves that were owned by the Baker or Davis families, more so than the 

Matkins.  The cemetery could also have been used for the slaves used by 

Richard and William Holding to farm this parcel. 

 

Madison County marriage record indexes were checked to see if a 

relationship among the families who owned the land could be indicated, as a 

clue to the likelihood of probate court transitions of ownership.  By 

examining the on-line index provided by the Madison County Records 

Center, any marriage before the 1870s for surnames of Baker, Beadle, 

Couch, Davis, Holding, Matkins, Watkins, and/or Wood was noted.  (This 

included variant spellings of the surnames, such as Beedle for Beadle and 

Holden and Holdin for Holding.)  There were only 4 marriages of people 

with these surnames to anyone with one of the other surnames of the group, 

which is based upon land ownership records.  These were: 

 

* Milton Davis - Betsy Baker  1819 

 

*  W. H. Davis - M. J. Matkin 1855 
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*  Darby Beadle - Emma Watkins 1872 

 

*  Andrew Couch - Polly Baker  1819 

 

 

The last of the above list, for Andrew Couch to Polly Baker in 1819, is likely 

connected to the John Couch who in 1809 bought the SE/4 of S22-T4-R1W, 

adjacent to the SW/4 of S22 owned by John Baker in 1810.  The Milton 

Davis marriage to Betsy Baker (possibly a sister of Polly), also in 1819, may 

well have established a relationship that led to the interest of George W. 

Davis in purchasing the land around the cemetery in 1854, considering that 

the same land had just been sold by William Baker to William Matkins in 

1846.  Likewise, the marriage of W. H. Davis to M. J. Matkin in 1855 could 

be another connection of the families who owned the land about that time, 

even if these particular members of the families were not the direct owners.  

They may well have been descendants or siblings of the owners, with a 

“vested interest” in the land. 

 

Since nothing conclusive has been found to prove who may be buried in the 

cemetery, there is no suggestion at this time that the name of the cemetery be 

changed to another surname.  There is already a monument in the cemetery 

to denote it as the Madkin Cemetery, so unless that is proven to be 

inappropriate at some later time, it is recommended that the name be left as 

is. 

 

 

 

Prepared by John P. Rankin, September 17, 2005 


